
 

 
 
 
 
Summons to Meeting 
 
Wednesday 29 January 2020 
 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

Thursday 6 February 2020, 2.00 pm 
 

Council Chamber - Allerdale House, Workington 
 

Membership: 
  
Councillor Iain Greaney (Co-Chair) Councillor Alan Pitcher (Co-Chair) 
Councillor Carmel Bell Councillor Nicky Cockburn 
Councillor John Crouch Councillor Malcolm Grainger 
Councillor Michael Heaslip Councillor Joe Holliday 
Councillor Daniel Horsley Councillor Adrian Kirkbride 
Councillor Michael Little Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes 
 

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. If you have any questions 
or queries contact Ian Hinde on 01900 702544. 

 

Agenda 
 
1. Apologies for Absence   
 

2. Declaration of Interests   
 

 Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda, in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct. 

  

3. Call In - Consideration of Market Provision  (Pages 3 - 42) 
 

Executive Minutes 15 January 2020  (Pages 43 - 48) 
 

Call in Protocol  (Pages 49 - 54) 
 



 

 
 
 
Monitoring Officer 
 

 
Date of Next Meeting: 

 
Friday 21 February 2020, 1.30 pm 

Council Chamber, Allerdale House 
 
 



Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Page 4



EMAIL TO OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 30 January 2020 

 

Good Afternoon All 

 

I confirm that I received the attached call-in on 27th January 2020 within the call-in timescale. 

 

Following consideration of the call-in and the Scrutiny Call-in Protocol and Checklist I have accepted 

the following grounds for call-in: 

 

 Further information and explanation is required in relation to: 
 

-          The sustainability of the decision taken based on the comments included in the 

call-in in relation to whether the in-house service would create enough income 

to sustain the in-house service 

 

-          The alternative options considered and why the alternative options were not 

chosen 

  

The relevant part of the call-in 

protocol is set out below: 

 

 

Has the decision been well 

explained, i.e. do you need 

more information? 

a) Was it clear what the reasons for the decision were? 

b)  Was it clear what the desired outcomes were? 

c)  Was it clear what alterative options (if any) were 

considered? 

d)  Was it clear why the alterative options were not 

chosen? 

e)  Do you need any more information/clarification? 

 

 

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee will consider the call-in on Thursday 6th February, 2pm. 

Page 5



 

If you have any queries, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

 

Sharon Sewell 

 

Head of Governance and Regulatory Services 

Monitoring Officer 

 

Page 6



Document is Restricted

Page 7

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



At a meeting of the Executive held in Council Chamber - Allerdale House, Workington 
on Wednesday 15 January 2020 at 4.00 pm 
 
Members 
 
Councillor Marion Fitzgerald (Chair) Councillor Mike Johnson (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor John Cook Councillor George Kemp 
Councillor Paul Scott Councillor Stephen Stoddart 
 
Staff Present 
 
B Carlin, N Hardy, C Holmes, J Irving, K Kerrigan, C Nicholson, G Roach, A Seekings, 
S Sewell, G Wilson and P Wood 
 

 
299. Minutes  

 
The minutes of the meetings held on 27 November and 2 December 2019 were 
signed as a correct record. 
 

300. Declaration of Interests  
 
10. Allerdale Investment Partnership (AIP) - Amendments to Members 
Agreement and Appointments. 
 Councillor Marion Fitzgerald; Other Registrable Interest; Due to being the 
Council member representative on the Allerdale Investment Partnership (AIP). 
 

301. Questions  
 
None received. 
 

302. Members' Announcements  
 
None received. 
 

303. Workington Town Deal Board  
 
The subject of the decision 
 
The Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance submitted a report which sought 
member’s approval of the composition of the Workington Town Deal Board and 
nominated Allerdale Board members. 
 
Councillor S Stoddart moved the recommendations as per the report; this was 
seconded by Councillor J Cook.  
The motion was unanimously agreed. 
 
Alternative options considered 
 
Not to progress the formation of a Town Deal Board. 
 
The reason for the decision 

Page 43

Agenda Annex



 
To agree the composition of the Workington Town Deal Board by the Towns 
Funds programme and to nominate Allerdale Board members. 
 
The decision 
 
Resolved 
 
That –  
 

1. The composition of an Interim Town Deal Board, as set out in the report 
be agreed;  

2. The Board’s Terms of Reference and Engagement Strategy, attached to 
the report, be agreed; 

3. The final composition of the Board be delegated to the Chief Executive, 
in consultation with the Leader; 

4. The Member with the Portfolio responsibility for Economic Growth and 
one Member who represents a Workington Ward covered by the 
geography of the Town Deal be appointed to the Town Deal Board; 

5. Part of the capacity funding be used to employ an officer to manage the 
Towns Fund Programme. 

 
304. Member Appointment to iESE Transformation Ltd  

 
The subject of the decision 
 
The Head of Community Services submitted a report which sought members to 
appoint a representative of the Council to act as a voting delegate at the Annual 
General Meeting of iESE Transformation Ltd. 
 
Councillor G Kemp moved the recommendation in the report; this was 
seconded by Councillor P Scott. The motion was unanimously agreed. 
 
Alternative options considered 
 
Not to appoint a voting Council representative to iESE Transformation Ltd.  
 
The reason for the decision 
 
To appoint a representative of the Council to act as a voting delegate at the 
Annual General Meeting of iESE Transformation Ltd. 
 
The decision 
 
Resolved 
 
That the Leader of the Council be appointed to act as a Voting Delegate at the 
Annual General Meeting (AGM) of iESE Transformation Ltd. 
 

305. Proposal to Establish a Council Owned Housing Company  
 
The subject of the decision 

Page 44



 
The Programme Director submitted a report which sought approval of the 
creation of a Council owned housing company.  
 
Councillor M Johnson moved the recommendations as per the report; this was 
seconded by Councillor J Cook. 
The motion was unanimously agreed. 
 
Alternative options considered 
 

1. To agree to transfer assets and establish a Council owned housing 
company with the ability to act as both a developer and property landlord; 

2. To establish a joint venture with a developer to undertake residential 
development alongside the establishment of a Council   

 
The reason for the decision 
 
The creation of a Council owned housing company to provide the Council with a 
delivery mechanism to primarily develop new homes that would support the 
Council’s drive to meet housing need and improve living conditions across the 
borough.  
 
The decision 
 
Resolved 
 
That –  
 

1. A local authority wholly owned housing company (“the Company”) be 
established and the associated Business Plan be approved; 

 
2. The transfer of the assets required for delivery of the phase 1 projects to 

the Company be agreed; 
 

3. The Programme Director be appointed as Chief Operating Officer of the 
Company; 

 
4. Delegated authority be given to the Programme Director, in consultation 

with the Leader of the Council and Portfolio Holder for Housing, to agree 
an appropriate company structure and related governance 
arrangements, including:   

 Confirmation of the name and branding of the Company; 

 Approval of the Articles of Association for the Company and the 
size and composition of its board of directors; 

 Recommending to the Shareholder Committee appointments to 
the posts of Company Secretary and (if determined) Non-
Executive Directors of the Company; 

 Preparation of a Shareholder’s Agreement to be entered into 
between the Company and the Council for consideration by the 
Shareholder Committee; 

 Ensuring that the Company holds appropriate insurances; 

Page 45



 Ensuring that appropriate contract management arrangements are 
in place; 

 To make any amendments to the Business Plan necessary to 
ensure the effective incorporation and operation of the Company. 

 
 Resolved  

 
“That under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
grounds that they may involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 3 of part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.” 

  
 

306. Market Provision  
 
The subject of the decision 
 
The Destination Manager submitted a report which sought to provide members 
with a range of options for the management and operation of outdoor markets 
on the expiry of the current contract on 31 May 2020. 
 
Councillor G Kemp moved that option 4 as per the report be approved; this was 
seconded by Councillor S Stoddart. 
The motion was unanimously agreed. 
 
Alternative options considered 
 
Following an options appraisal on 5 possible routes available to the Council, 3 
had been identified as the options that maximise Council income, growth 
opportunities whilst providing well-run and efficient markets. 
 
The reason for the decision 
 
The current contract for management and operation of outdoor markets in 
Keswick, Silloth, Wigton and Workington ends on 31 May 2020. 
 
The decision 
 
Resolved 
 
That Option 4 (the in-house option for managing and operating our market 
service from 1 June 2020) be approved as per the report. 
 

307. Allerdale Investment Partnership (AIP) - Amendments to Members 
Agreement and Appointments  
 
The subject of the decision 
 
The Head of Place Development submitted a report which sought member’s 
approval of proposed amendments to the AIP Members Agreement to reflect 
the changing circumstances of the Allerdale Investment Partnership and to 
appoint a member representative to replace Councillor Mark Jenkinson. 

Page 46



 
Councillor P Scott moved the recommendations as per the report and 
nominated Councillor Mike Johnson to be appointed as member representative 
to replace Councillor Mark Jenkinson. This was seconded by Councillor S 
Stoddart. 
The motion was unanimously agreed. 
 
Alternative options considered 
 
Not to approve the proposed amendments to the Members Agreement; 
 
Suggest alternative amendments to the Members Agreement. 
 
The reason for the decision 
 
To consider proposed amendments to the AIP Members Agreement to reflect 
the changing circumstances of the Allerdale Investment Partnership.  
 
The decision 
 
Resolved 
 
That –  
 

1. The proposed amendments to the Members Agreement be approved 
and delegate authority to negotiate and complete the necessary 
documentation to the Head of Place Development in consultation with 
the Portfolio Holder for Economic Growth; 

2. Any reserved matter (referred to in the Members Agreement as 
Members Meetings and Members Matters) be delegated to the Head 
of Place Development in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for 
Economic Growth;  

3. Councillor Mike Johnson be appointed as a Member Representative 
on the Partnership Board to replace Councillor Mark Jenkinson. 

 
The meeting closed at 4.22 pm 
 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



 

 

Call-in Protocol for Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

In considering a Call-in decision the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will follow this 

protocol: 

Before Receipt of Call-in 

Overview and Scrutiny support officers will work with the call-in signatories to 

complete the reasons for call-in. Completed reasons for call-in will be received by the 

Monitoring Officer in consultation with the relevant Chair(s) of Overview and 

Scrutiny, who will then consider whether to call-in the decision. 

After Receipt of Call-in and before the meeting 

The Monitoring Officer will confirm the validity of the call-in and advise all Councillors 

and Senior Management Team members of the call-in request. 

The Leader of the Council will determine which Executive Member should attend the 

call-in, which officer should accompany them and which officer they appoint to 

advise the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the call-in. 

The Monitoring Officer will meet with the call-in signatories, to clarify the procedure, 

consider how they will present the call-in and prevent duplication. The Scrutiny 

Coordinator will brief the Chair on the call-in. 

Documents 

 The agenda will contain: 

 This call-in Protocol 

 The call-in request 

 The Executive Members’ decision statement or minutes 

 The original report(s) upon which the decision was made 

 (In the case that either the minutes or report are exempt a public summary of 

the information will be provided as far as is possible). 

Any other document that the Monitoring Officer, Executive Member or call-in 

signatories feel would assist the Committee in considering the call-in. 

At the start of the meeting 

The Chair will outline the procedure for the meeting, setting the tone and approach 

that will be taken. 

Page 49

Agenda Annex



 

The meeting 

The spokesperson(s) for the Councillors who have made the call-in request (who 

shall be seated together) should outline the reasons for the call-in. Each speaker will 

be time limited to 5 minutes. 

The relevant Executive Member explains the rationale for the decision and may be 

supported by officers and the Leader of the Council as appropriate. They shall also 

be seated together. Each speaker will be time limited to 5 minutes. 

Councillors who have made the call-in request have the opportunity to question the 

Executive Member. 

Other members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee have the opportunity to 

question the Executive Member. 

At the discretion of the Chair, other Members present may have the opportunity to 

question the Executive Member or make a brief statement. 

At the discretion of the Chair, anyone else present may have the opportunity to make 

a statement (limited to 5 minutes) on the issue. 

The Executive Member or the Leader of the Council will have a right of reply to any 

brief statement made on the issue. 

Before forming a decision, the Chair may decide to adjourn the meeting in order to 

allow the call-in signatories to reflect on the evidence received and to consider any 

proposals they wish the Committee to consider. 

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee will debate the issue. Only members of the 

Committee and the Officer appointed by the Leader of the Council to advise the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the call-in may speak. 

If there is no proposal the Chair or another Member may propose a motion which 

can be voted on in the normal way. 

Options available to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

There are only three options available to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee when 

they are considering a call-in: 

 Let the decision stand 

 Refer the decision back to the decision taker, stating their concerns and the 

decision that the Committee wish the decision taker to make 

 Refer the decision to full Council if the decision is contrary to the Policy 

Framework contrary to or not wholly consistent with the budget. 

Page 50



 

Additionally the Overview and Scrutiny Committee may make other 

recommendations as a result of the call-in to relevant bodies, which shall be 

considered after a decision has been reached on the call-in. 

When can a decision be called-in? 

 

It is important that the call-in process is not abused, nor causes unreasonable delay; 

the main tool of the overview and scrutiny committee to improve the delivery of 

policies and services should be detailed reviews, rather than call-ins. 

 

The Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules in Part Six of the council’s constitution 

specify formal safeguards for the use of call-in.  These include rules about the 

number of members who must request a call-in and a restriction that prevents any 

decision on the same matter being called-in on more than one occasion within a six 

month period.  The constitution also suggests that call-ins should be reserved for 

exceptional circumstances.  Broadly, a decision can be called-in when members: 

 

 believe it may be contrary to the normal requirements for decision-making; 

 believe it may be contrary to the council’s agreed Policy Framework and/or 

budget; 

 need further information from the decision-taker to explain why it was taken. 

 

Call-in checklist 

 

The above rules and criteria can be brought together in the following checklist of 

questions (or tests) that can be used when a member is considering a call-in.  

Questions 2-5 can also be used by authors to test draft reports for Executive. 

 

 

1 Can the decision actually 

be called in? 

If the answer to any of questions 1(a)-(g) is yes, 

then the decision CANNOT be called-in. 

a)  Does it relate to a non-executive function? 

b)  Was it a non-key decision taken by an 

officer   under delegated powers? 

c)  Was it classed as an urgent decision? 

d)  Has the issue been called-in in the last six 

months? 

e)  Does the decision relate to an existing call-in 

(i.e. decisions taken in relation to a reference 

back)? 

f)   Does the decision relate to the formulation 

of a policy or budget matter that requires full 

council approval? 

g)  Was it a decision taken by full council? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 51



 

 

2 Was the decision in 

accordance with the 

council’s policy 

framework? 

a)  What is the relevant policy or strategy? 

b)  Is the decision contrary to that policy? 

c)  If yes, how? 

 

 

 

3 Was the decision in 

accordance with the 

agreed budget or budget 

procedures? 

a)  Is there funding for the proposal in an agreed 

budget/capital programme? 

b)  If no, have the rules for virement and 

supplementary estimates been observed? 

 

 

4 Was the decision taken in 

accordance with the 

principles of good 

decision-making (Section 

10 of the Constitution)? 

a)  Does the decision comply with the council’s 

constitution, i.e.: 

 

 Scheme of Delegation 

 Rules of Procedure 

 Codes and Protocols? 

b)  Was the decision reasonable within the 

common meaning of the word, i.e. rational, 

based on sound judgment? 

c)  Was the decision reasonable within the legal 

definition of ‘reasonableness’, i.e. was 

everything relevant taken into account, and 

was everything irrelevant disregarded? 

d)  Was the decision proportionate, i.e. is the 

action proportionate to the desired outcome 

e)  Was the decision taken on the basis of due 

consultation? 

f)  Was the decision taken on the basis of 

professional advice from officers? 

g) Were human rights respected and/or will the 

decision give rise to any human rights 

implications, i.e. without discrimination, the 

right of an individual to: 

 liberty and security 

 the enjoyment of their property; 

 a fair trial: 

 respect for private and family life; 

 freedom of thought, conscience and 

religion; 

 freedom of expression; and 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 52



 

 freedom of assembly and association 

etc? 

h)  When the decision was taken, was there a 

presumption in favour of openness? 

 

5 Has the decision been 

well explained, i.e. do you 

need more information? 

a) Was it clear what the reasons for the decision 

were? 

b)  Was it clear what the desired outcomes 

were? 

c)  Was it clear what alterative options (if any) 

were considered? 

d)  Was it clear why the alterative options were 

not chosen? 

e)  Do you need any more 

information/clarification? 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 54


	Agenda
	3 Call In - Consideration of Market Provision
	EMAIL TO OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
	MASTERMarketsReportExec15Jan20Reformatted

	 Executive Minutes 15 January 2020
	 Call in Protocol



